2104713 - rev. AA

IEC-61131 Developer's Manual

ISaGRAF IEC-61131 on ABB Totalflow G4 Devices Application Information







Intellectual Property & Copyright Notice

©2012 by ABB Inc., Totalflow ("Owner"), Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74006, U.S.A. All rights reserved. Any and all derivatives of, including translations thereof, shall remain the sole property of the Owner, regardless of any circumstances.

The original US English version of this manual shall be deemed the only valid version. Translated versions, in any other language, shall be maintained as accurately as possible. Should any discrepancies exist, the US English version will be considered final.

Notice: This publication is for information only. The contents are subject to change without notice and should not be construed as a commitment, representation, warranty, or guarantee of any method, product, or device by Owner.

Inquiries regarding this manual should be addressed to ABB Inc., Totalflow Products, Technical Communications, 7051 Industrial Blvd., Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74006, U.S.A.

INTR	ODUC	TION	VII
	Orgar	nization & Style	vii
	Chapt	er Descriptions	vii
	Gettin	g Help	vii
		Before Calling	vii
	Key S	ymbols	vii
1.0	IEC-6	1131 INTRODUCTION	1–1
	1.1	Overview	1–1
2.0	ISAG	RAF INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT ENVIRONMENT (IDE)	2–1
	2.1	Overview	2–1
3.0	SETU	JP	3–1
	3.1	Creating a New ISaGRAF Project	
		3.1.1 Importing the Totalflow.tdb File	
		3.1.2 Establishing Target Parameter	
		3.1.3 Establishing the Resources for the PLC	
	3.2	Configuring I/O Registers Between the IEC Application and the G4	
		3.2.1 Step-by-Step Instructions	
	3.3	Annunciator	3–16
	3.4	Setting Up an IP Address in the G4 Device	3–16
	3.5	Special ABB Totalflow Variables	3–18
	3.6	Instantiating the IEC Interface in PCCU32	3–18
	3.7	Building, Compiling and Downloading the IEC Application	3–19
	3.8	Deploying the IEC Application to Other G4 Devices	3–20
	3.9	Downloading to Other Devices	3–21
	3.10	IEC Application and INI Files	3–21
	3.11	Customizing the Custom INI File	3–23
		3.11.1 Example	3–23

TABLE OF CONTENTS

BLANK PAGE

TABLE OF FIGURES

Figure 2-1 Opening the ISaGRAF Project Screen of a Pre-Existing Project	
Figure 3-1 ISaGRAF Development Environment	
Figure 3-2 New Project Dialog Box	
Figure 3-3 Project Display	
Figure 3-4 Import Totalflowl.tdb Definition File	
Figure 3-5 Properties Window	
Figure 3-6 Resource Properties Window	
Figure 3-7 Code Section - Properties	
Figure 3-8 Compiler Options Section - Properties	
Figure 3-9 Hardware Section - Properties	
Figure 3-10 Settings Section – Properties	
Figure 3-11 Hardware Architecture	
Figure 3-12 ISaGRAF to Totalflow Register Flow Diagram	
Figure 3-13 ISaGRAF Variables	
Figure 3-14 Solution Explorer - ExampleProg	
Figure 3-15 Global Variables	
Figure 3-16 _SYSCYCLENCNT – Insert New Record	
Figure 3-17 New Variable	
Figure 3-18 New Variable Inputs	3–11
Figure 3-19 Navigation Window	
Figure 3-20 Device Selector	
Figure 3-21 Resource1 I/O Window	3–12
Figure 3-22 Variable Selector	
Figure 3-23 I/O Parameters REAL_Inputs Dialog Box	3–13
Figure 3-24 Final Resource1 I/O Device Definition	3–14
Figure 3-25 Global Variables – Resource1-VAR	
Figure 3-26 Register Pointers within the ABB Totalflow Device as Viewed by PCCU32	3–15
Figure 3-27 Resource1-VAR Tab	
Figure 3-28 System Setup Dialog Box	
Figure 3-29 Network Tab	
Figure 3-30 Downloading to the Target Device	
Figure 3-31 Download Dialog Box	
Figure 3-32 Upload Packages	
Figure 3-33 Save As Dialog Box	
Figure 3-34 INI File	
Figure 3-35 Gen INI G4 Dialog Box	
Figure 3-36 PCCU32 View of INI File	

BLANK PAGE

LIST OF TABLES

Table 3-1 IEC Application Register Numbers	
Table 3-2 ISaGRAF I/O Code	
Table 3-3 Annunciators	3–16

BLANK PAGE

Introduction

This manual is written to provide information regarding IEC-61131 and ISaGRAF. Along with the relevant information pertaining to these two components, the manual will also offer details about setting up IEC-61131 and ISaGRAF.

Organization & Style

Each of the chapters in this manual presents information in an organized and concise manner. Readers are able to look at the headings and receive a broad summary of the content without reading every word. Also, there are overviews at the beginning of each chapter that provides the user with an idea of what is in the chapter and how it fits into the overall manual.

Chapter Descriptions

Chapter	Name	Description
1	Introduction	Provides a description of IEC-61131.
2	ISaGRAF Environment	Provides a description of the ISaGRAF integrated development environment.
3	Setup	Provides the user with a description on how to set up the various components.

Getting Help

ABB Totalflow takes pride in the ongoing support provided to customers. When purchasing a product, the user receives documentation which should answer their questions; however, ABB Totalflow Technical Support provides an 800 number as an added source of information.

If requiring assistance, call:

USA: (800) 442-3097 International: 001-918-338-4888

Before Calling

- Know the ABB Totalflow model and serial number. Serial numbers can be found on a plate located on each unit.
- Be prepared to give the customer service representative a detailed description of the problem.
- Note any alarms or messages as they appear.
- Prepare a written description of the problem.
- Know the software version, board and optional part numbers.

Key Symbols

The following symbols are used frequently in the manual. These are intended to catch the eye and draw attention to important information.



Intended to draw attention to useful information or to clarify a statement made earlier.

Intended to draw attention to a fact that may be useful or helpful in understanding a concept.



Intended to draw attention to a statement that might keep the user from making a mistake, keep the user from destroying equipment or parts or keep the user from creating a situation that could cause personal injury if caution is not used.



Intended to draw attention to a statement regarding the likelihood of personal injury or fatality that could result from improper access or techniques used while working in hazardous locations.

1.0 IEC-61131 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Overview

In recent years, the process and instrumentation markets have experienced unprecedented growth. Programmable logic controllers (PLC) have provided the backbone for this growth. With so many PLC manufacturers supplying equipment to the industry, the different types of programming languages and techniques that are used have had a tendency to create a certain level of confusion. Additionally, the usage of different controllers has also created communication problems from controller to controller.

IEC-61131 was developed by the International Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) to provide a generic programming environment for the PLC industry. In conjunction with ISaGRAF, ABB Totalflow has adapted their IEC compiler to work with the ABB Totalflow G4 (XSeries^{G4}) product line. This alliance has greatly enhanced the functionality of the XSeries^{G4} products by providing the end user with the tools with which to build custom applications.

Different user applications may require different programming solutions. One application may lend itself to a graphical solution (Function Block Diagram) while another program may be best addressed using ladder logic (Ladder Diagram). The IEC-61131 solution supports five (5) different programming tools:

- ST Structured Text
- FBD Function Block Diagram
- IL Instruction List
- LD Ladder Diagram
- SFC Sequential Function Chart

ISaGRAF's approach to IEC-61131 supports an additional programming tool: Flow Chart (FC) language. Using one of the above programming tools or using them in combination should provide the user with enough flexibility to address any special application problems that their field environment might present.

ABB Totalflow's XFC^{G4} and XRC^{G4} devices can run multiple IEC-61131 applications on a single application credit. The IEC-61131 licensing is on a "per box" basis. A single IEC-61131 credit allows multiple IEC-61131 applications to run on a single G4 unit.

- One IEC-61131 Interface Turned On = One ISaGRAF Resource
- One IEC-61131 application credit supports multiple instances of the IEC-61131 interface

These application credits can be applied to the flow computer at the factory or by purchasing a credit key (secure flash drive) with the appropriate credits installed.

BLANK PAGE

2.0 ISaGRAF INTEGRATED DEVELOPMENT ENVIRONMENT (IDE)

2.1 Overview

Upon its initial introduction in 1990, ISaGRAF has become the industry standard for the implementation of IEC-61131. Its design is intended to provide a programming tool that can be used in the PLC and/or microcomputer world. ISaGRAF was designed by ICS Triplex, a Rockwell Automation company.

The following documentation will not attempt to discuss the ISaGRAF environment beyond its interface to ABB Totalflow products. As such, the following topics are discussed:

- Importing the ABB Totalflow library into ISaGRAF (Totalflow.tdb).
- Setting up an IP connection in ISaGRAF (allowing communication with an ABB Totalflow device).
- Downloading (via a 32-bit loader) the IEC-61131 application to the ABB Totalflow device.
- Targeting the G4 device for debugging the IEC-61131 application via ISaGRAF (debugging details are covered in the ISaGRAF documentation).

The following displays the overall view of the ISaGRAF screen after opening a pre-existing project (see Figure 2-1):



Figure 2-1 Opening the ISaGRAF Project Screen of a Pre-Existing Project

BLANK PAGE

3.0 SETUP

3.1 Creating a New ISaGRAF Project

The following information details the procedures necessary to use ISaGRAF.

- 1) To create an IEC-61131 project, open ISaGRAF Development Environment (IDE), and click on File.
- 2) A drop-down menu displays. From the selections, choose New. From the New fly-out menu, select Project (Figure 3-1).



Figure 3-1 ISaGRAF Development Environment

3) The New Project dialog box displays. Select the Windows_552_M_Basic_Template from the list of available options. Once the template is selected, browse to the preferred folder in which to save the project. Upon completion, click the OK button (see Figure 3-2).

Rew Project	Coldonative Ref.	tere (adversidate)		9 ×
Recent Templates		Sort by Default		Search Installed Templates
Installed Templates CAN Projects EscORALS Import Unca QMX Simulator VeWorks Windows BaGRAF installed	Rempfates .	SarikEE_IPL Windows,522,i_Basic,Template Windows,522,i_Full,Template Windows,522,M_Basic,Template Windows,522,M_Ault,Template Windows,532,M_Ault,Template Windows,530,i_Basic,Template Windows,530,i_Jailovet,Sock,Template Windows,530,i_Jailovet,Sock,Template Windows,530,i_Jailovet,Sock,Template Windows,530,i_Jult,Template	CAM Projects CAM Projects CAM Projects CAM Projects CAM Projects CAM Projects CAM Projects CAM Projects	Type: CAM Projects Template for Windows Target Version :S.22 and below Memory Model : Mediam Implementation : Multi-Task Features sported: - Standard (EOSLIE): Fot and PB - Pastnerol - Optimized Code -
Name:	ExampleProject			
Location	chureni yakacu	Adocumentsiysagnaf 6.1/Projects	Browse.	
Solution	Create new solu	tion		
Solution name:	Example/hoject			Add to Subversion
				OK Cancel

Figure 3-2 New Project Dialog Box

The project that was just created will display as follows (Figure 3-3):



Figure 3-3 Project Display

3.1.1 Importing the Totalflow.tdb File

A PLC definition now needs to be imported. ABB Totalflow provides a definition file (Totalflow.tdb) that enables the ISaGRAF environment to target the ABB Totalflow G4 devices (XFC^{G4}/XRC^{G4}).

- From the ISaGRAF Solution Explorer window, right-click on the project that was just created in the following section. From the pop-up menu, select Import.
- From the Import fly-out menu, select Import Target Definitions (see Figure 3-4). An Open dialog box displays. Navigate to where the Totalflow.tdb file is located. Upon location, select it.



Figure 3-4 Import Totalflowl.tdb Definition File



The Totalflow.tdb file provides functions to read and write to the various data types available in G4 devices. The definition file also defines the Microsoft CE OS, the processor type, memory mapping and the overall target device environment. 'Get' and 'Set' functions support some of the following data

'Get' and 'Set' functions support some of the following data types:

• GetREAL – 32-bit floating point

- SetREAL 32-bit floating point
- GetDINT Double signed integer (32-bit)
- SetDINT Double signed integer (32-bit)
- GetUDINT Double unsigned integer (32-bit)
- SetUDINT Double unsigned integer (32-bit)
- GetSTRING Character string (64 bytes)
- SetSTRING Character string (64 bytes)



These routines are not recommended. Use I/O points for input/output. See Section 3.2.

3.1.2 Establishing Target Parameter

The following details the parameters that must be set in the Properties window.

- Once the Totalflow.tdb is installed, collapse the project (i.e., ExampleProject), and right-click on Device1. From the pop-up menu, select Properties to reveal the Properties window.
- 2) In the Target parameter field, change the default to 'TOTALFLOW' (see Figure 3-5).



Figure 3-5 Properties Window

3.1.3 Establishing the Resources for the PLC

The following details setting up the Resource properties for the PLC.

 Collapse the menus for Device1. Upon completion, right-click Resource1. From the pop-up menu, select Properties to reveal the Resource1 Properties window (see Figure 3-6).



Figure 3-6 Resource Properties Window

- 2) In the Resource1 Properties window, within the Code section, change the Embed Symbol Table parameter field to 'True' (see Figure 3-7).
- 3) Next, change the Embedded Table Type to 'Complete' (see Figure 3-7).



Figure 3-7 Code Section - Properties

4) Upon completion, expand the Compiler Options section, and change the Check Array Index to 'True' (see Figure 3-8).

	-e ×
True	
True	
False	
False	
False	
False	
True	
False	
False	
True	
Reduced	
None	
False	
True	
	100
	True False False False False False True False True Reduced None False True

Figure 3-8 Compiler Options Section - Properties

5) While still in the Properties window, expand the Hardware section. Once expanded, change the Target parameter field to 'TOTALFLOW' (see Figure 3-9).

 Hardware 		
Memory Size	32768	
Target	TOTALFLOW	

Figure 3-9 Hardware Section - Properties

- 6) While still in the Properties window, expand the Settings section. Upon expansion, change the Cycle Time parameter field to '1000' (see Figure 3-10).
- While in the Settings section, change the 'Memory for Retain' to "\tfData\iec-%\Sample", replacing "Sample", with the name of the ini file, i.e., "25900010-001".

65	
1000	
ms	
True	
Real Time	
\#Duta\iec-%\Sample	
16	
Abways	
False	
	1000 ms True Real Time WDuta/sice-W/Sample 16 Always False

Figure 3-10 Settings Section – Properties

- 8) Once the user has completed setting up the parameter fields within the Properties window, return to the Solution Views. Once in Solution Views, right-click the vertical bar above the TOTALFLOW icon. From the pop-up menu, select Properties.
- 9) Within the Properties window, the user needs to change the IP address. The user should change the IP address to the network IP address of the intended G4 unit (see Figure 3-11).



Figure 3-11 Hardware Architecture

3.2 Configuring I/O Registers Between the IEC Application and the G4

The following section discusses defining the IEC registers for input and output data. There are three (3) options in which to use a variable:

- Internal use
- Read/Write value only
- Register address at the PCCU32 level (user-configurable)

The following information attempts to summarize the register address relationship (see Table 3-1):

- IEC Variable Name Static Pressure (SP)
- **IEC User Address** x9012 hex combination of Totalflow Array * 1000 hex, (fixed by type) and Register Index, last three digits (hex). This value only needs to be set to 'lock down' the Totalflow Register address. If the variable is 'internal only' and not used in the INI or another application, the user may leave this field blank. This can also be left blank during development and instead use the automatic INI display.

Туре	Array	Туре	Array	Туре	Array
Bool	0	Int32	5	Float	9
Int8	1	Uint32	6	Double	10
Uint8	2	Int32	7	String	11
Int16	3	Uint32	8	Time	12
Uint16	4			Date	13
				Register	253

Table 3-1 IEC Application Register Numbers

• **IEC IO Address – tdx.y**: **t** is the data type, **d** is the data direction, **x** is the I/O device number and **y** is the channel. This value is automatically set when wiring the I/O in the ISaGRAF environment (see Table 3-2).

Table 3-2 ISaGRAF I/O Code

Direction	Code	Туре	Code
INPUT	I	Udint/Dint	D
OUTPUT	Q	Real	R
		String	S

- **Totalflow Value Register** 91.9.18: 91 is the specific application number, 9 is from Table 3-1 and 18 is set by the IEC User Address, if supplied. The address is used by the INI and other applications to set and/or read the value of the IEC variable, SP.
- **Totalflow Indirect Address Register** 255.253.1 is the programmerselected value that is placed in the parameter field for this I/O point. If the final register does not need to be set by the user, the Final Register can be placed here (i.e., system date).
- **Totalflow Final Register** 7.4.1 is the register with the original value and is entered in by the user to point the actual value: Al1.
- Totalflow Value 13.57.



Figure 3-12 ISaGRAF to Totalflow Register Flow Diagram

In Figure 3-12, SP, internal to IEC, has a value of '13.57'. Totalflow shows this value (13.57) at 91.9.18. the user specifies the location of the actual value by placing '7.4.1' into 19.253.1.

IEC runtime reads location 7.4.1 every second while running and places the value into 91.9.18. TheIEC program can read this value in its internal variable SP.

3.2.1 Step-by-Step Instructions

Figure 3-13 displays the available variables for a typical IEC application.

🖉 Chemitry - Automation Collaborative Platform (Adm	and alot							1	
File Salt View Project Build Debug Sould	Window Help								
13- J- H # 1 J 3 9.0- 5	- Child Red		· 772x3·. 85.0	the + b d	0.40	1969	1 4 3	2200	Association in the
	A EEEE,	10 55 5 N	N.,						
Solution Replacement and and and	mariel With in Depinsore								• 2
0.0	Natio	- Deta Typ Drm Aske	Cannast	Inter W. Drediet	and the	Artribute	Reament	String State	
Distryment installed		101010		10 10	1.0	1.00	1.00	1.00	14.00
· U Chembe	Americalor	UDINT -	For Assumption panel	Nacy -	AQULE	Ten te -			
· E frouert	Andrea	UDINT -	Pump Tan cate, Manual-3:Auto-3	Veloput -	NDOF	Fired -			- III
· Ethopani III	BAYCEPH/Raffmer	UDINT -	Eath Caluated Reng, Dr.1 me (Jml)	Var -		Real/Set 1		80	10 C
· Block?s	Exh/Cairgh	8.4 -	Baldh Caxing Previous	National -	\$201.0	Read :		10	0
Local Variables	BanCurdy/sea	UENT -	Batch Chemical Syschory Note (20) for Pamp 3+Open, 6 + Or	Yadva -	10112	Setu 1			60 B
Global Variables	BANOwer-Mullime	UDINT +	Baldh Time Unit for Diemicals to Mar	Nar -		Read/Serve -	10	87	(A
Line and Lin	BACCARMACINA	UDINT :	Batch Time took for Demicals to Mac	Nar -		Function (
+ E fectors	Exh/Com/unitional	16AL -	Balth Chemical Pump Speed Set Form	Nar -		Fund/Serie -	10	90	· .
· B Deatine	ExcOuntant.4	RA -	Exhibition Tarkianal	Values.	1007	Fand 1			
< # int.	BANCHITLDIN	16.74	Batch total amount chemicipicted since fail contract hour	Var -		Res(/Im) +		90	·
Court Tariables	EA/Out/fait	8.4	Balch total amount cham rijected yerkerday	Valuet 1	5003	Read 1		10	14
- B Licensory	BARONN	R.N	Each-Orice Tenory & Ken Punger	Valique -	8,93.5	fund -	10.	80	17
· • • • • • • •	Extra priorite and app	RA ·	Balah Number of Complete Cycles Textenday	Nw -		Read/America			10 C
-						_	_	_	_
Com faternes board & Enertial & Feel	ing Changes III Chapel								
Ready									86 ,

Figure 3-13 ISaGRAF Variables

1) In the Solution Explorer section, expand the ExampleProject menu item in the tree-view. Expand the Resources1 sub-menu to reveal Programs. For the purpose of these steps, ExampleProg was added (see Figure 3-14).



Figure 3-14 Solution Explorer - ExampleProg

2) With the Device1 sub-menu expanded, double-click on Global Variables. All of the variables that are available for Resource1 will display (Figure 3-15).

ExampleProject - Automation Collaborative Platfor	m (Administration)										accession.	
The Bott Wese Propert Build Debug Text D	All Mindow Help 21-C3 (A Fine) (A (M M M M))(E)	JZGISS	515	103220		5 Smith		2091	296	9 8 8 9		7.
Solution Explorer * 9 11 Learning	anopsist Resurre	6-WR × Complete	10-POU									• 1
30	Name	Deta Ty Dimension	Allen	General	Distant Value	Destin	- Winne	Ambula	Related	String Stat	Address	Ξ.
Californition ThempireProject' Caloropection		10 10	10					1.0		1.0		
 ID Solution Weeks 	Datudool	8008				Var .		Real/Mrl -				15
Depoprient and pr	FARTNUMBER	\$78N -			25/80000-000	Not		Read/Mrs -		64	B000	18
r ill Devicel	_SPEVA_CYCLEONT	DBAT -		Cycle abunter		Volume 1		Read -				
 K Resource1 	_95WA,CYCLENTE	TME -		Timestamp of the beginning of the cycle		WORK		Read				
< Brooms	_SALAYANA MARKA	BOOK -		Kennel variable binding producing areas		WHO HAD		Real				. 6
Example Prog	_SYSVA, KVBCERR	8008 -		Kernel saturble binding consuming and		VarGobal 1		Read/Mrd 1				18
Clobal Tarsoles	_DVEVA.REENANC	\$710N -		Resource name (max length - 253)		VarQuital .		Read -				
1 10 10	_SYSVA_SCANON"	DB/T -		Input stan counter		VerDoted 1		Read -				
	_95W_TOOKTME	TIME -		Programmed cycle time		WOOdd.		Real/Writ 1				
	_SYSVA, "CYCURNES!"	TME -		Current cycle time		NUCH		Read				
	_STATIONADDAM	TME -		Musimum cycle time since last start		NHOMA:		Read				
	_SUMPOCHMON	DNT 1		Number of cycle cuerflows		WHERE A		Read				
	_SHEWA, RESHOLD	SM -		Resource execution mode		VerGobal		Read				11
	SHOUL OF BRIDE	8008 -		Rescale one carle when application is it		Sectore 1		Read Print 1				

Figure 3-15 Global Variables

In an effort to simplify the procedures, the following instructions will show how to create the variable, static pressure (SP). This requires the definition of several properties.

3) In the Global Variables section, right-click on the '_SYSCYCLENCNT'. From the pop-up menu, select Insert Record (see Figure 3-16).

2 DempleProject - Automation Collaborative Plat	form (Administrator)									acceleration of	
File Edit View Project Build Debug To	oo's Window Help										
10-1-10 × 13 9-0-	21-12 A Feel		· 23228.3.	.133.	5 Simulation		3091	236	1880	1991	
	* A = = = []	1/01555181	S.,								
Scheeliging + # X Lar	who the fear	d-WALX Dangieting POU									- 3
0.0	Name	Deta Ty Deneration Alles	Conness	Distant Value	Destine -	Weng	Ambula	Retained	String Size		A 8
Californian Stampishiped' & projection		10 10 10				10	1.00			1.00	18
 ID Solution Week 	DataBool	800k -			Var -		Real/Wri -				
 II Instrainfraint 	FARINUMBER.	\$789x +		2580000-000	Nor -		Read/Mrt -	10	64	B005	
 III Device1 	_SPEA, CRIMINE	108vE -	Cycle structure		CONTRACTOR OF		Read -				- 18
 E Resource1 	_SAMPOUTONLE -	Cat	amp of the beginning of the cycle		VarGobal 1		Read				
 Bhopans 	_STATISTIC	Copy	saturable binding producing error		VarDotat 1		Read				
Example Prog	_SPSVA_KVBCHR	Parte	saturble binding consuming and		VarGobal -		Read/Mrs				- 13
Clobal Tanades	_\$YSVA,REDAWAG	Delete	te name (max length - 253)		VarQuital -		Read -				- 63
	_SPEVA_SCARONT	Evert Record	can counter		VerDoted -		Read -				18
	_SHM_TCHCHCIME	Quick Declaration	named cycle time		VerGold		Real/Writ -				. 18
	_SYSVA, "CYCURNEN!	Dependencies	t-cycle time		VHOMM 1		Read -				- 84
	SITIA TOMADAU	Add to Spy Unit	sim cycle time since last start		Northeast 1		Read				
	_SYNA, TOYOM BUD	Save as Default Layout Settings	er of cycle cuerflows		Verbolat 1		Read				
	SPEVA,RESMODE	Read Default Layout Settings	te execution mode		VarGobal 1		Read				6 B.
	_\$4544,000.000	Properties	e one cycle when application is in		VarDobal 1		Read/Mrt 1				100
				_	_	_			_		- H.
🔍 Cross References Browner 🛍 Brow Lie 🖏 A	Anding Duriges 🖬 Output										
Ready											÷.,

Figure 3-16_SYSCYCLENCNT – Insert New Record

4) Upon selection of Insert New Record, a new line for variable inputs displays (see Figure 3-17).

Complete ject - Automation Collaborativ	e Pathre (Idministrator)											(m)(k)	-
The Lot Vew Project Build Debut	a Tools Mindow Help												
0-1-101230-	* + (A # H H H H H	11	155.	1.5	· 1995283.	.168	in Simulation	a + 2	309	29.8	9886	1.2.0	36
Solution Explorer	ExampleProp-EAL Record	11-148. ×	Completion	-700									• 3
90	Name	Data Ty	Deresion		Gamment	Internation	Direction	-	Attribute	Repaired	Sking Size	Address	E P
Californition Thempiehopest Caloropesti			1.00	1.0									
 Unstantion Week Destination Media 	DataBool	800L -					Var		Read/Wri -				
II ExampleProject	PARTNUMBER.	5780N -				2500803-301	Var		Read/WH -	10	64	8.001	100
 Ull Device1 	F Strahatuter	8000 v					-		Real-Weil				
 E Resource1 	1012/0_AVRI2_	08/7			Cycle courser		VarOktal		Read 1				
< Bhopses	_SWA,CYCLEDA'N	TIME			Tomestamp of the beginning of the cycl-		Variation		Read				
 Examplehog 	_SYSVA, KVBPERR	8001.			Kernel variable binding producing error		Varikolal		Read				
COLOR THESE IS	SYSVA,KVBCEM	8005.1			Kernel variable binding consuming and		VarDobal		Read/Writ *				102
	_SP\$VA_RESNAME	57KPs -			Resource name (max lengths/255)		Varühtel		Read -				
	_SHEWA_SCANONT	09/7			Input scan counter		VarOutal		Read -				
🔍 Cross References Browner 💐 Error Liet Genety	🕵 herding Charges 🔳 Charges							Q8.4	Cel 1		0.1		

Figure 3-17 New Variable

5) Within the New Variable parameter field, type in 'SP' for the name of the variable. Next, select 'Real' for the data type, 'Read' for the attribute and 'VarInput' for the direction (see Figure 3-18).

2 Dampie/heject - Automation Collaborative Pla	dom (Administrator)											and a	-
File Edit View Project Build Debug 3	och Window Help												
10-1-10 x 33 9-P-	- 21 - 12 2 Feel				· [] 3 2 2 2 3 -	.100.	h Smile	on + 2	10.93	0.55	1.5.0	3 3 3 1	10:
1	* A E E E	1.) 21	12220	52.1	s.,								
Solden Explore - # X Inc	ngleProp VAR Record	at-val x	ExempteProg P	00									• 38
98	Name	- Details	Omersion A		Comment	Daniel Weber	Destruction		Ambutu	Billion a	String Size		18
G Solution ExampleProject (3 project)				1				1 .1					
 Ur Soution Vices 	RACINUMBER	5792N -				250800-001	W.		Read/Wet 1		64	8001	110
· I furnethint	9	IEAL -					Referent.	-	Read -				
 Ul Deviud 	StatusBook	8001.1					Var.		Read/Mill 1				1103
 K ferovel 	_3954A,0008C	800			Execute one cycle when application is in		VerGobal		Read/Net 1				182
< B hopens	_SPEALCROLEONT	DMI -			Eprile assumer		VarGotal.		Read -				
- E Dangiehog	_DYDHA_CYCLEDATE	TIME -			Timestamp of the beginning of the cycli		VerDeland		Read -				18
Distance in the second se	_DYSHA, KHRCERR	BOOL -		-	Kennel saniable binding consuming and		Verticited		Read/Met 1				1182
	_STERA, KHERER	BOOL		_	Kernel variable binding producing error		WOOM.	8	Read				. HE
🔍 Cross References Browser 📽 Error Unit 🕵 I	Pending Changes 🖬 Ovep	ž.											
Rem() Saved													15 1

Figure 3-18 New Variable Inputs

6) After setting the various variable parameter fields, display the Navigation window. From the Navigation window, select Resource1. From the Resource1 menu item, choose I/O Device (see Figure 3-19).

E BampleProject - Automation Collaborative P	fations (Administrator)						lense lense	(C) 840 M
file Edit Vew Project Build Deltup	Tools Window Help							
3-1-40 × 0.3 19-19	- 21 - 12 2 feet		- Quarter 3+	.ine.	1 Simplerie		>	1.
	AABBBI	1/9 55 5 8	1 h .					
Solution Explorer - B X In	manual-table or Excepted	up 700					Navigation Window	* + X
912	harts	a Data Ta Dimension Aller	Connent	Inter Inter	Dention	10	Outer	
California Stampheling and California							Tostument New	
 ID Solution Views 	EVENUMBER	5780N -		2500000-001	Var -		Oldward	F
Ceptoperant, sadge	92	EA -			Conception of the	103	Contractor in the second secon	
+ ill (bester)	StatusBoel	100.			Vier :		C Chinciture & Fanction Blocks	- P
 E fessaret. 	,10,90,1	REAL -			VarDencity 1	1.54	A lange of the land	
* Bhopana	30,90,2	REAL .			VarDirectly 1	1 54	with some	E
· Disargintag	JOJKOJI	HEAL -			VarDner/Ry 1	1.54	W	R
P Deserverses	30,90,4	MAL -			VarCrimitity 1	1.54	 festoral 	- 19
	SPEALOEDEC	800k ·	Esecute one cycle when application is in		VarGolul		#P_C.Device	
	_USIA_CKLENT	DNT -	Cycle counter		VerGolul -		(China Universities	- B
	PSIA,0030471	1140	Timestamp of the beginning of the cycle		VerDister		-Gaulan	
	_SPEA, IVECIAL	800	Kennel variable binding-consuming and		VarGottal .:			
	_DTIA,KUSPOM	800L ·	Remel variable binding producing error		VerDokal -			
	_SPEAR AREADON	SM -	Resource execution mode		Variable ?			
	_OPELA, REFAAAAE	STRN -	Resource name (max length=21%)		VarDobal .			
	_DEIA SCANOV	DNT -	Input stan counter		VerGold II			
	CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER OF	112.07	A		12-12-1-1			

Figure 3-19 Navigation Window

7) The user now needs to click on the Device Selector icon. The Device Selector dialog box displays. In the dialog box, select REAL_Inputs. Once completed, move to the Number of field and change the default number. For the sake of these instructions, the number is '5' (see Figure 3-20).

ThampieProject - Automation Collaboration	w Ration (Americhator)									and the second second
file Edit View Build Debug Tools	Window range									
3.7.88 × 22 4.	Print and a seal				 103,035,0 	81.) D 8	The Service		0.010.000	188999941
· · * # /	114 1 10 10 10	1.79	22.2	SN.						
Sciution Explorer + # X	Recursed (#D Device* x)	Devort Reso	sort-test	Example®	ug-P00	•	Norgetion Wo	di Sel		• # X /
G 12	BB Index Selector			1	100 CO	- E	Gobal			P.1
California Stample Project (3 project)	E land: Infaction						Rockymen	Lióne		
_ Deployment kadol	Rene	Device Type	Dreation I	Comment		_				
- 🗉 ExampleProject	IN COLUMN	DIN7	Input 1	Read 32 to		_				
 III Devict K Reported 	PE ON Overs	ON7	Output	atria 12%.	And Design Suffrage	_			Aug. 100	
· Brogans	HILL DOWN	10.00	Orbot 1	mile 17.5	Trent Statestor					
E Diampieñop	P# 578265.24p.m	578056	input i	Read 64 R	Same .	Desire Tot	or Direction	Comment		
- Table					## DNT.hovb	OWT	Post.	Read 32 h.		
	Device Index (p)	Number of	64	- 16	## DNT,Outputs	0847	Overal.	Write 12 b.	10	
	Onvice Arian	Device Comment			## REAL Trans	REAL	Input	Read 32'0-		
	Cet III.A. Registers		-		FF STARG hours	128846	Cutjud	Weiter 12 b.		
									-	
					Device Index in 1	Number of		8		
			a	Cone	Device Alias	Device Corre	net		_	
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			- T.	Derical Sec King Registers		-			
🔍 Cons References Boomer 👪 Brow Lab	🛼 Pending Changes 🖬 Oa	April .								
Ready									41	0.1
				_			10	Cont		

8) Click the OK button.

Figure 3-20 Device Selector

9) Real inputs are now displayed in the Resource1 I/O Device window (see Figure 3-21).

2 DampieProject - Automation Collaborat	tve Radom (Administrator)			(127) (22 - 107 - 107
his lide was Build Debug Test	ts Window Help			
3- J- 40 2 3 3 4.	 アーローロー連邦 	· 2332×	3+10055 Seven + + 2 0 910195	
1 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	A R W V R R R U V V V V	5.5.5 N.S.		
Sciulion Explorer + 8 x	fasoural 10 Device * x Device) Recou	oct-UAI ExamplePog-POU	- Navigation Window	• FX &
G folder Exemplehojer () project	U - W b: Stanform Regime: MA_boos - S Comment- D - S Comment-	Index Name	Cool Resultation	• •
 Batter tess 	A & A A	8 5860 1 5801 2 5802 3 5803 4 5804 4 5804 4 5804 4 5804 5 6 6m + 10,50 5 6 0m + 10		
🖉 Com Actorization Statement 🗮 Borar La Reactly	al 🖏 Pending Danger 🖬 Dalgad	L Conesso-Yone	64 GF1	61

Figure 3-21 Resource1 I/O Window

- 10) To place the SP variable into the Resource1 I/O Device window, doubleclick on %IR0.0.
- 11) The Variable Selector window displays. Select the 'SP' variable, and then click the OK button (see Figure 3-22).

2 ExampleProject - Automation Collaboration	ve Redom (Administrator)		-
file full View Build Debug Tools	Window Help		
10-1-10 200 4.	10 - 51 - 52 <u>14</u> mail	 (2)2)2)2(3) (2)2)2)2(3) (3)2)2)2(3) (3)2)2(3) (3)2)2(3) (4)2)2(3) (4)2)2(3) (5)2(3) (6)2(3) (7)2(3) (7)2(3)	00:
1	VALEE B D. ZON	555 N.S.	
Sciation Deployer + 8 10	feround 10 Device 1 × Device1 Resource	nat tekt – Camparlog-POU + Sanigaton Window	- E K /4
G (2)	and U PM 2: Totalfort Regime: 104, Jopus	- Good	P 4 5
CE Solution ExampleProject (3 project)	- E Connect-	Index Name Rissignmilling	
 Is Solution Years Deployment (add) 	a provent	9 38059	
- II ExempleProject	2	1 Mill	- 11
 III Device1 K frequenci 		N/ Variable Selector	- N
· BAupana	-	4 tare too Odd-free Loofices	
- El banglefrog	0	P 20 · 2005 · 14	_
> late	0	Determined in the second secon	_
	<u>w</u>	Name Data Tape Deserved Alter Convert	_
		· / KA · · · / · /	_
		L G	_
		[4 9] 1 Mill	_
		8,9 2 5802	
		1 MMJ	_
		1 M · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_
🔍 Con Arleman Stown 💌 Lou La	Rending Changes 🗰 Output		
nawiji			#

Figure 3-22 Variable Selector

- 12) Expand the Parameters menu item in the Resource I/O Device tree-view. Upon expansion, double-click on 'Ch1=0.0.0(***). The I/O Parameters REAL_Inputs dialog box displays.
- 13) Locate Ch1 in the dialog box. In the Physical Value parameter field, type in the following: 255.253.1. Once completed, click the OK button (see Figure 3-23).

ExampleProject - Automation Collaborati	ve Patho	m (Administrator)						and the second
his lidt Wese Build Debug Tools	West	in they						
3-1-40 233 9-		21+123 A Ref.			· 0752	3-10	3 (3 5 Service - F 2 5 9 (2 9 5 9 8 8 8 6 6	10001
		LA M W W III.T	1933	STOR .				
Sides Inter + 1 X	-	ditternet a Percet	formers 1.4	M. Includes	N .		· Nexadar Vinta	
0.00		the second of the second				_		
	-	C Strandors	i ile				- title	
California State State	-			Ann Name			W Lastyman line	_
- Depirement loaded		- E Cul+86.07*7	ap (O Paratter	en Kristjepos				
 ExampleProject 	•	- E CM-860(**)	Name	Physical/Velue	Comment	Format		
 III Device1 		- E CH6-860(**)	04	291,291.2	App.Armplodex	STRING	5	
 E Resource1 	8	- H Cid+000(**)	0.0	0.04	App.Armylindex	STRING		
 Bhopses 	1	E Colveso(**)	00	0.04	App.Armylindex	STRING		
 B Completing 	2	Bostom	04	0.04	App.knaylindex	578046		
Occur tanaties	8	Conversion of the local sector of the local se	06	0.00	App.taray2ndex	118040		
1 1000	107	E 041-000m	06	0.04	App, Arapitoles	578046		
	-	- E OL2-00077	00	1.04	App.Artigizides	STRENG		_
		- S 041+080(**)	0.6	100	App.Artejchdex	STRENG		_
		- E CiG4-003(**)	09	0.00	App.kraytrolex	174040		_
		- E Ck21-000(**)	Gar	122	NOR ACTION OF	1000		
			(Defeat)			01	and	_
		- E cost-seams	15	Conversion-None				_
		- E CK29-0008**		P on an interview				
		E 048+000m						_
	14	-	- · ·					
🔍 Cross References Drowner 📧 Error Lab	1000	Eing Changes 🖬 Output						

Figure 3-23 I/O Parameters REAL_Inputs Dialog Box

14) The final Resource1 I/O Device definition is as follows (see Figure 3-24).



Figure 3-24 Final Resource1 I/O Device Definition

15) The Wiring definition also displays in the Global Variables - Resource1-VAR for static pressure (SP) (see Figure 3-25).

View Project Build Delaug	Taxis Window Help									
HAR A DIA R. P.	a Charles I do that		 Identisión 	1000	in tendetor		30.98	(1 10 IL)		2220
	all a large self	1 2 4 1 4 4 4	ALC: NOT ALC	1.0.0				P 1.0		
	* [7] = = = []	11/21/222	2.5.		_	_			_	
rior + 8 X Is	sound-till, x. Example?	up ROU								
	Nanc	- Data Ty Dimension A	Res Commont	Inches Volume	Direction	10104	Amount	Distance of	Series Ser	Activity
n ExampleProject () project		e 1. e 1. e 1.		1.4		1.4	1.14	1.4	1.1	1 1 10
don these	MACINOMER	578N -		2500000-007	Var -		Read/Wet -		64	14000
aprovenent hadpi	2	COAL CO.			entrail.	8005	Are	INCOME		
levind	Statustical	8001			War in		Read/Wei 1	0.0		
Reputed	,10,00,3	HEAL -		-	Vallently 1	SHE	Read			1.000
C Popers	,08,00,J	HEAL -			Valuenty -	5,812	Read -			
DampteProp	,10,980,3	REAL 1			Vallenty -	5813	Read			
Of GALER TRATEONS	30,80,4	REAL -			Valuenty -	SPIR .	Read			
14.00	SHWA, OCHEC	800.	Execute one cycle when application is a		Variable 1		Read/Weill?			
	MIDOLANDE_	DNC -	Cycle counter		VarGetal 1		Read			
	SYNA, CKIADATE	TIME -	Timestamp of the beginning of the cycli		Verlight -		Read			
	_5/7VA_KV9C0AR	800.	Kernel variable binding consuming and		VarDebal 1		Rest/Weill			
	SYNA, IVERA	100. 1	Kenel variable binding producing error		Variatian 1		Read			
	_SYSVA, RESMODE	5M7 -	Resource execution mode		VerSelat -		Read			
	SYDA, RESAME	57KN -	Resource same (max length - 200)		Validation -		Read			
	SHWA, SCANINE	DM >	Input scan counter		Variabal 1		Read			
	_SHIM, TOYOMMENT	TANK -	Current cycle time		VarGebal -		Read .			A DESCRIPTION OF
-	- Paratra and and and and and and and and and an	The optimized in the local distance in the l				_			-	
efferences Browner 🔀 Letter Lat 🖉	Rending Changes 🖬 Outp									

Figure 3-25 Global Variables – Resource1-VAR

Static pressure (SP) in the IEC project has now been pointed to the registers in the ABB Totalflow target device. In other words, CH1 from the ISaGRAF is used to supply the SP to the IEC application. CH1 has been pointed to the target holding register of 255.253.1. 255 is a special application number which will be changed to the application slot where the specific IEC application slot is instantiated. This subsequently gives the user application slot independence. 253 is the pre-defined array for the register type - holding registers (i.e., indirect addressing). 1 is the programmer-assigned register index for SP.

PCCU32 - (Entry)			ic.	. E X
# Operate View Window Help				- # ×
術面長面の読み	A 18 B		аш ² 2 <i>8</i>	
	1001 001		2 mil ch mil d	
- Communications	Bool String	Register Number of Variab	es.	
- Totalflow - TCP				
- Totalflow - USB		Description	Value	-
- Totalflow/COM0	91.253.1	Register 1	7.4.1	
- Remote CCU-COM1	91.253.2	Register 2	0.0.0	
- COM2- Tanks	91.253.3	Register 3	0.0.0	
- AMCI - PLC	91.253.4	Register 4	0.0.0	
B-Wireless UO Interface	91.253.5	Register 5	0.0.0	
ia: DO Interface	91.253.6	Register 6	0.0.0	
Flow Measurement	91.253.7	Register 7	0.0.0	
- Setup	91.253.8	Register 8	0.0.0	
- Analysis	91,253.9	Register 9	0.0.0	
- Digital Outputs	91 253 90	Register 10	0.0.0	
- No Flow	91 253 91	Register 11	0.0.0	
iii Display	91 253 92	Deplater 12	0.0.0	
 Holding Registers 	91 263 53	Desister 13	0.0.0	
III Operations	91 263 14	Basister M	444	
E Shutdown	71.430.14	Programmer 14	4.4.4	
IDC Interface	91,200,10	Pregrater 10	444	
Auto	91,253,16	Register 16	9.8.9	
Command/Status	91.253.17	Register 17	0.0.0	
Avarm System	91,253,18	Register 18	0.0.0	-
C Response				
Pulse Accumulator	Reread	Monitor Print	Screen Save Sond Close Help	2.169.00
Ready	,	#Polis	13 #Emore: 0 Connected to 10.127.185.167 Logi	k user

Figure 3-26 Register Pointers within the ABB Totalflow Device as Viewed by PCCU32

In Figure 3-26, the user can see register 91.253.1 displayed within PCCU32. The IEC application holds this SP register so that it can then access the hardware I/O in the ABB Totalflow device. Within the PCCU32 Register tab, the user should notice the Value column. The Value column holds the register for the actual hardware I/O point. The IEC application can be mapped to application slots; the recommended range is 91 through 93 in the ABB Totalflow device. In Figure 3-26, application slot 91 is used.



The ABB Totalflow target device generally defaults pressure to the hardware analog input register, 7.4.1. As such, the user should enter '7.4.1' in the Value column.

Returning to the Resource1-VAR, the user needs to set the address for SP. This usually is performed prior to downloading the IEC application to the G4 device (see Figure 3-27).

camportipid - seconarios coaporarios et	ators paraera	(H)											Desire Calle	_
Edit View Project Build Debug	Tools Window I	10												
	· 51 · 53 (34)	int .				· 033520	2.1003	Simulation	· 2	1090	969	1000	200	11 2
87.9	*		.1201	554	1.152 % .									
utortakov + 9 x to	ound talk x 1	anglefic	e POU											- 1
10	Name o	Data Ty	a Disease		6		Initial Value	Direction	Niking.	Attribute	Relative	a Doing Tim	Alabert	18
Soution Stamplehoper G project	1.00		a	0 10					1.00		e - 15	e	e	2.1
ID Solution Verws	RATINGAUDOR	STRING					25880000-802	Var -		Real/Write		64	6.002	115
Depergeneral sadpr	54	REAL			Static Pressure			Velopet -	5,80.0	Read	- 8		9005	18
< Clipping	Andrea	10111						-		final/invite				21 B
· Elementi	30,90,1	REAL		_				VarOwer/Pp -	1801	Read				11
 Its Programs 	30,81,2	REAL						Vallenty -	54R0.2	Read				110
 Ecompleting 	L0.94.0	REAL.						Vallently 1	5803	Read				110
Cobe Versions	JOJNER	REAL						Vallents -	SROAT	Real				18 F.
						1								- F

Figure 3-27 Resource1-VAR Tab

The address will lock the address that is seen PCCU32 and the rest of the ABB Totalflow applications. The first digit equals the array number (in hex). The remaining three digits are the register numbers. The register numbers are also in hex (i.e., 9.18 > 9012).

At this point, the user is ready to select the programming mode or tool that will be used to create the IEC application (i.e., Structured Text, Function Block Diagram, Instruction List, Ladder Diagram or Sequential Function Chart).

3.3 Annunciator

The status of an application can be displayed optionally on the front panel display. There is a special register referred to as app: 255.251. This is single byte value. This can be most ASCII characters or a special value from Table 3-3.

Name	Value	Description
ANN_NONE_C	0x00	None
ANN_OFF_C	Oxff	Annunciator off character
ANN_HI_C	0x01	Hi Limit
ANN_LO_C	0x02	Lo Limit
ANN_LL_C	0x03	Low Lithium Battery
ANN_LC_C	0x04	Low Charger
ANN_OV_C	0x05	A/D OV
ANN_BF_C	0x06	Backflow
ANN_LRBATT_C	0x07	Remote Low Battery
ANN_VC_VO	0xF8	Valve Override
ANN_VC_FO	0xA2	Valve Full Open
ANN_VC_FC	0xA3	Valve Full Closed
ANN_VC_OV	0x01	Valve Opening
ANN_VC_CV	0x02	Valve Closing
ANN_VC_LL	0x03	Valve Local Lockout
ANN_VC_LB	0x07	Valve Low Battery
ANN_PL_C	0xb7	Remote Listen
ANN_PT_C	0x7e	Remote Transfer (Send)
ANN_PD_C	0x7f	Remote Download (Receive)
ANN_PS_C	0x5c	Waiting for SYNC
ANN_PA_C	0xCE	Waiting for Ack

Table 3-3 Annunciators

3.4 Setting Up an IP Address in the G4 Device

The following information details the steps for establishing an IP address in the ABB Totalflow G4 devices.

- 1) Connect to the G4 device with PCCU32. Click on the Setup icon from the PCCU32 standard toolbar. The System Setup dialog box displays.
- 2) In the System Setup dialog box, click on the Setup tab. Within the Setup tab, the user needs to locate the PCCU Com. parameter field. Once located, click the down arrow, and select Network from the drop-down menu.
- 3) Next, move to the Network ID or IP parameter field. Enter in the network address (see Figure 3-28). Upon completion, click the Close button.

Intractions TotalFLOW Communications Totalflow - 1CP Totalflow - 1CP Totalflow - USB - MMI Secial - COM0 - 1T Remote - COM1 - Secial - COM0	Convert Housty Daily Events	
- XMV Interface	Contrast Colors	
I/O Interface Flow Measurement	Setup Directory Paths Misc	×
AGA3-2 Display Holding Registers Operations Value Control Trend System Pad Controller Plunger	AG Communications PCCU Com. Port Network. PCCU Com. Port Network. PC	ber Bultone Connect Disconnect NGC Operate Entry Monitor Teminal Calibrate Collect. File Transfer Valve Control
	Teneout (m) 3000	Remote Protocol Remote Communications TI/Modbus 32 Bit X/Senies Loader NGC Startup Wated 1 union (RL 1 Million
	Auto Connect P None C Entry C Collect C Init	tal Connect

Figure 3-28 System Setup Dialog Box

- 4) In the PCCU32 tree-view, select Communications. In the Communications window, click the Network tab.
- 5) Within the Network tab, enter in the network ID, IP address and subnet mask into the corresponding parameter fields (see Figure 3-29).

PCCU32 - [Entry]			_ □ ×		
	Mg	J II 3 2 0	۲		
TOTALFLOW Communications Totalitere - TOP	Communie	sations Ports Network			
- Totalflow - USB		Description	Value		
- MMI Serial - COM0	0.0.15	Hetwork ID	G4 XFC		
- TF Remote - COM1	0.9.7 Enable DHCP		No		
- Spare - COM2 - I/O Interface	0.0.12	IP Address	192.168.55.2		
Flow Measurement	0.0.13	DHS Server	0.0.0		
Setup	0.0.14	WINS Server	0.0.0		
- Anarysis - Digital Outputs	0.0.17	Default Gateway	0.0.0		
-No Flow	0.0.16	Subnet Mask	255.255.255.0		
- Adv Setup					
- Holding Registers	0.7.12	lletwork Adaptor	Enabled		
- Operations ■ Plunger ⊕ Trend System	4 Eete	ad T Monitor Sigve	Send Qose Help Print		
Ready		#Polls: 6 #Error	s: 0 Connected to 192.168.55.2 Lc 🦽		

Figure 3-29 Network Tab

3.5 Special ABB Totalflow Variables

There are two special variables that ABB Totalflow uses to help the developer.

FYI 💮

It should be noted that variables are case-sensitive.

- PartNumber Used by PCCU32 to determine the INI file for this IEC program.
- NumRegisters Sets the size of the indirect address array.

3.6 Instantiating the IEC Interface in PCCU32

The IEC Interface is an ABB Totalflow application that must be instantiated to run any IEC applications. The IEC serves as the link between the IEC application and the G4 code.

Within G4, application slots have been assigned to various applications that run on the G4 machines. To turn on the IEC Interface application, connect to the G4 device using PCCU32. Once in Entry mode, locate the meter ID within the PCCU32 tree-view. This is the first menu item at the top of the tree-view. Click on the meter ID and then move to the Applications tab.

Within the Applications tab, click the Add App button. This causes the Add New Application dialog box to display. From the Applications to Add parameter field,

click the down arrow. Select the IEC Interface from the drop-down menu. Upon completion, click the OK button.

The user can then see the IEC Interface application within its assigned application slot. Click the Send button to instantiate the IEC Interface application. The user can then see that the IEC Interface application is within the PCCU32 tree-view.

3.7 Building, Compiling and Downloading the IEC Application

The user needs to refer to the ISaGRAF documentation for specific information regarding the various aspects of IEC-61131. When the application has been completed, the user needs to compile the results. This entails the user right-clicking on Project>Build. The necessary executable is then created.

After building and compiling the newly created IEC application, the user needs to download the application to the target device. To download to the target device, click on the Download icon on the standard toolbar (see Figure 3-30).



Figure 3-30 Downloading to the Target Device

Upon selection, the file begins to download. In the lower left-hand corner of the screen, the user can see the message "Download Started Project: ExampleProject1". Additionally, the lower right-hand corner of the ISaGRAF development environment displays a download progress bar.

A dialog box will then display. Click the Yes to All button (see Figure 3-31). This completes the download process.



Figure 3-31 Download Dialog Box

At this point, the IEC application is downloaded to the G4 device and is ready to be ran or debugged. For further instructions on the debug commands and techniques, refer to the ISaGRAF documentation. While the application code has been downloaded to the G4 device, it still needs to be instantiated before it will run on the G4.

3.8 Deploying the IEC Application to Other G4 Devices

Generally, an IEC application is applicable to more than one site. This means the same IEC application can be downloaded to other G4 devices.

- 1) Open PCCU32. From the PCCU32 standard toolbar, select Package.
- 2) From the Package drop-down menu, select Upload Package (see Figure 3-32).

N H C HI		
-	1.	14
	Sector a	11 43
A state of the second s	provine inc.	
	Ke y	

Figure 3-32 Upload Packages

- 3) The Upload Packages dialog box displays. Select IEC Application.
- 4) Click the Start button.
- 5) A Save As dialog box displays. The user can then navigate to the location where they elect to save the file (see Figure 3-33).



Figure 3-33 Save As Dialog Box

FYI

The file extension associated with the file must match the board type (XFC or XRC).

6) Assign a name to the file, and click the Save button. This saves the application to the selected location.

3.9 Downloading to Other Devices

The following information details the steps for adding additional locations.

- 1) Open PCCU32. From the PCCU32 standard toolbar, select the 32-Bit Loader icon.
- 2) Within the 32-Bit Loader window, click the Browse (...) button. Move to the location where the user elected to save the Location file.
- 3) Upon location, place a check in the Download ISaGRAF Runtime checkbox.
- 4) Click the Start button.

FYI

The device will need to be in a Loader state:

- a) Click on the 32-Bit Loader icon within PCCU32.
- b) Select the Shutdown Totalflow.exe checkbox.
- c) Select the Download ISaGRAF Runtime checkbox.
- d) Select the Start Totalflow.exe checkbox.
- e) Click the Start button to begin the download process.
- 5) Upon completion, select the Start Totalflow.exe checkbox.
- 6) Click the Start button. The location loads into the system.

3.10 IEC Application and INI Files

ABB Totalflow's PCCU32 uses INI files to define user screens within PCCU32. INI files are text files. PCCU32 parses the INI files to create the various screens within PCCU32.

If a custom INI file is not created for the IEC application, a default INI file is provided.

The first step in creating a custom INI file is to create the variable, PartNumber, within the ISaGRAF development tool (see Figure 3-34).

8 FG 11	All variables													
Variables	Nate	Alex	1,014	1	1964 rates	Dimensi.	Sine	Anteste .	Soge	Direction.	Prine:	1 ving	Addess	Connert
Treatment (PC)	Ore		ALK.		1.0	_	None	Pee	Gabel	Hand	No		_	
and and a second second	Rat		8004		1		Nore	Pree	Gideal	Internal	No			
E AN GIND	Vectori		QMT		100	_	Nord	Free	Gabal	internal.	No	_		
All variable	VerCort?	_	087		290	_	Nore	7.00	Gabe	ittend.	No			
The second second	VerCost()		OW		300	_	Nore	744	Galari	iter d	No			
CODAL HA	VeriOhar1		REAL	_	10.0	_	None	Piee	Gabal	internal	No	_		
The Stratilization	VeeDec		ALA.	_	100.0	_	Nore	Piece	Gaba	internal.	No			
	WareOffiel)		164	_	75.0	_	Nore	1.00	Gabe	and a	No			
	Ver0V1		ACAL				Nore	10100	04.6+#	Output	No	10400		
	Wastu?		INCAL.	_	_	_	Nord	white .	Gabal	Output	No	Ngho I		
	Weetled)		AEAL			_	None	141.04	Gabe	Output	No	NQP0.2		
	Verfend		1940		185	_	Nore	Pres	Galari	internal.	No	_		
	VerPeod		1946		THE	_	None	Piee	Gabel	Internal	No			
	Verfeld		THE		THE	_	Nore	Pree	Gabal	Internal	No	_		
	Veolage		INEAL	_	25.0	_	Nore	Free	Gabal	interval.	No	_		
	Verifiarge?		MEAL.		50.0	_	Nore	7.00	Gale	internal.	No	_		
	(Vereflarge)		PEAL	-	10.0	_	Nore	Piece	Galiat	interval.	No	_		
	Pathola		THING	65	Sections		None	Pree	Gibbal	Internal	No			

Figure 3-34 INI File

Within the IEC Interface application in PCCU32, point to the specific, custom INI file to be used with the user's IEC application. For the purpose of this manual, the custom INI file is named Sine-001.ini or Sine-001fm.ini (Expert view) and should reside in the \PCCU32\INIFiles folder.

PCCU32 can automatically decrement the revision level (-001) to a lower number of the file if the current version does not exist on the current PCCU32 directory.



The file prefix (sine in Figure 3-34) cannot be longer than ten (10) characters.

ABB Totalflow supplies a program, Get INI G4, which will read a symbol table file (i.e., IDS00101) and then generate an INI file as a starting point for a developer to customize the INI file (see Figure 3-35). ABB Totalflow recommends that the option "Add Auto Var Tabs" be used to make an Expert view file. Upon completion, the user can make all of the customizations and then duplicate the files as an Advanced view INI file.

W1[Sample](0500101			Browse
INE File		-	
C:(PCCU7)pr#Res(JEC	n		Browse
Error Output File			
C/IPCCU70IJniFiles/JEC	ierr Jult		Browse
Update INE only	T Add System Variables	🖓 Add Auto Var Tabs	
Expand Registers	12	Errors to File	

Figure 3-35 Gen INI G4 Dialog Box

3.11 Customizing the Custom INI File

INI files are text files that read by PCCU32 or WinCCU32 to determine how to display data within an application. The INI Programmer's Manual details INI file commands.

3.11.1 Example

In the following example, each lone is described below. The line numbers are for reference points only and are not used in an actual INI file.

1	[Status]
2	<pre>dsc:Enable Controller;cmd:13.0.1;typ:e;lst:ok=0,ALARM=1;</pre>
3	<pre>dsc:Alarm;cmd:13.6.1;typ:J;lst:ok=0,ALARM=1;</pre>
4	<pre>dsc:Stick Available;cmd:13.5.11;typ:1;</pre>
5	dsc:VALUES;typ:Z;
б	dsc:SP;cmd:13.9.1;typ:f;

- 1. Indicates the name of the first tab.
- The description is Enable Controller. The register displayed is array 0, index 1. The 13 represents the App type not the application number. The value is to be displayed as a drop-down box of values: OK or ALARM. The register type is byte integer as indicated by the typ: e;
- 3. This is similar to line 2 but with a data type of 4-byte integer.
- 4. The description is Stick Available. The register is displayed as a 4-byte integer.
- 5. The description is Values and does not display a register value. This causes a header for the next several values to help the user distinguish sections of values.
- 6. The description is SP. The register is displayed as a floating point value with default width and precision (see Figure 3-36).

Status Status2 Timers Setup Registers IEC Setup

1	Description	Value
14.0.1	Enable Controller	ok
14.6.1	Alarm	ok
14.5.11	Stick Available	0
	VALUES	
14.9.1	SP	0.0000

Figure 3-36 PCCU32 View of INI File



Document Title

©Copyright 2012 ABB, All rights reserved

IEC-61131 Developer's Manual Al								
Document No.	Date & Rev. Ind.	No. of Pages	Page					
2104713	AA	38	38					